MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
October 4, 2022

MONTGOMERY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Waddell declared a quorum was present and called the meeting to order at 6:04 p.m.

Present: Jeffrey Waddell
William Simpson
Britnee Ghutzman

Daniel Gazda

Absent: Merriam Walker

Also Present: Dave McCorquodale, Interim City Administrator
Chris Roznovsky, City Engineer

Katherine Vu, PE

VISITOR/CITIZENS FORUM:

No comments given.

CONSIDERATOIN AND POSSIBLE ACTION:

1. Consideration and possible action on the September 6, 2022 Reqular Meeting

Minutes.

William Simpson moved to approve the minutes as presented. Daniel Gazda seconded the

motion, the motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes —10/04/2022 — Page 1



2. Consideration and possible action on a recommendation to City Council for a

variance request for gravel in lieu of asphalt or concrete for the parking lot of the

Montgomery Grove located at 22016 Eva Street.

Mr. McCorquodale said staft’s opinion is there is not enough information at this time to be
able to make a solid recommendation. Mr. McCorquodale said this past March asphalt was
used in the parking area located at Montgomery Grove. Mr. McCorquodale said they are
asking to be able to continue to use asphalt as there is not enough information to be able to

make a recommendation until they understand more about the flood plain and drainage.

William Simpson asked if this was just for the variance to redo the asphalt. Mr. Cheatham
said no this was to keep the current asphalt that has been in place. William Simpson asked
if there was a concrete or asphalt apron coming in from off the road. Mr. Cheatham said

yes, it is already in place.

Mr. Cheatham said they do have engineer drawings of the site plan that specifically outlines
the parking lot from L Squared Engineers. Mr. Cheatham said they also have drawings for

the remodel of the restaurant that shows ADA compliance and ADA parking spaces.

Mr. McCorquodale said between the two drawings of the building permit and the ADA
spaces where they were shown does not match what the engineer drawing shows. Mr.
McCorquodale said there needs to be a consistent set of plans to show exactly what they

are doing.

Jeffrey Waddell said it is a fairly extensive plan overall and they all look forward to the
great potential there which has already been a big hit. Jeffrey Waddell said it seems like
they may need to table this item. Jeffrey Waddell said he thinks they need to take the
opportunity to have a discussion because it is an important discussion based on past and
future. Jeffrey Waddell asked if they are going to table this item due to various such as
drainage and overall scope, can there still be a discussion before it is tabled. Mr.

McCorquodale said yes.

Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes —10/04/2022 — Page 2



William Simpson asked if they are here to grant Mr. Cheatham a variance. Mr.
McCorquodale said this is just a recommendation for City Council on the asphalt surface
which has been installed there already. Mr. Roznovsky explained what was being proposed
and said the variance request is not for the true grid, it is just for the asphalt.

William Simpson said overall there are pros and cons on the look of a permeable surface.
William Simpson said the pros are it gives it character and a certain look for that type of
property and the con is the maintenance. William Simpson said he thinks it is an effective
way to go as it is permeable with less runoff and the look is fine as long as it is maintained.
William Simpson said if down the road they are going to approve these types of surfaces
maybe the City should perform an inspection once or twice a year to make sure it is
maintained properly.

Mr. Cheatham said his concern is a lot of the property is in a flood plain and this is a
permeable surface being used. Mr. Cheatham said if concrete or asphalt is used it is going
to create a lot of water flow that is going to run through. Mr. Cheatham said if they would
have to close for a month or two to totally redo the parking lot that would take away

business.

Mr. McCorquodale said this is not a permeable surface by any measurable standard. Mr.
Roznovsky said it is better than concrete or asphalt. Mr. Roznovsky said the concept of
having a gravel surface is not the issue. Mr. Roznovsky said the issue is where the ADA

spaces are going to be because this does tie into a bigger development.

William Simpson asked if they need to first approve the variance or just table the item now.
Mr. McCorquodale said there are several options. Mr. McCorquodale said they can
recommend for City Council to approve, deny, or table the variance until the required

drawings are submitted.

Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes —10/04/2022 — Page 3



William Simpson moved to pass the variance onto City Council upon proper
documentation being provided. Britnee Ghutzman seconded the motion, the motion carried

unanimously. (4-0)

Consideration and possible action on a proposed freestanding sign for Hodge Podge

Lodge located at 300 Prairie Street in the Historic Preservation District.

Mr. McCorquodale said Mr. Jeff Angelo, owner of Hodge Podge Lodge is proposing to
add a sign facing Eva Street for greater visibility. Mr. McCorquodale said the sign is unique
with a boxwood/greenery background with white lettering which illuminates in the

evening.

William Simpson asked if they need to take into consideration the brightness of the lights.
Mr. McCorquodale said there is a requirement that signs are not allowed to be more than
700 lux.

Mr. Angelo said they are told all the time that people did not even know they existed, and

they need some way to designate where they are located.

Jeffrey Waddell asked if the material of the boxwood is vinyl. Mr. Angelo said yes.

Jeffrey Waddell said there is a vacant lot in the front of Hodge Podge Lodge and in the
future if and when something is developed on that property would there need to be a
discussion because there is a chance the sign could be blocked. Mr. Angelo said they could
certainly adjust, but the property has been vacant for 24 years. Jeffrey Waddell said it
would have to be dealt with at the time should something like that arise but does not see it

being a problem. Mr. Angelo agreed and said the sign is mobile.
William Simpson said the fence is almost on the property line and how would maintenance
be managed. Mr. Angelo said the only maintenance would be on the back of the electrical

side which would be on Hodge Podge Lodge’s side. Mr. Angelo said once the sign is up,

Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes —10/04/2022 — Page 4



if a letter did need to be changed, then they would need access to the property, but Josh

and Chris have always been fair, and everyone gets along.
Britnee Ghutzman moved to approve the proposed freestanding sign for Hodge Podge
Lodge located at 300 Prairie Street in the Historic Preservation District. William Simpson

seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

Consideration and possible action reqgarding proposed exterior modifications to the

Cozy Grape located at 14340 Liberty Street in the Historic Preservation District.

Mr. McCorquodale said the plans have changed from an enclosed second story to an open-
air balcony above the existing back patio area. Mr. McCorquodale said they designed the
balcony to accommaodate a roof if they ever wanted to add and enclose it but what they are

asking for now is just a balcony.

Jeffrey Waddell asked if the balcony will be screened in. Mr. Barrett Mitchell the contractor
said the bottom is not going to be closed in and either will the second story open-air
balcony. Mr. Mitchell said there will be access on the side from a staircase. Mr. Mitchell
said it was originally planned to have it closed in, but they want to have the second deck
on top. Mr. Mitchell said they wanted to keep the engineer drawings as is so if in the future

they want to close it in the plans are already complete.
Mr. McCorquodale said there are currently 15 parking spaces on the property. Mr.
McCorquodale said onsite parking would allow for six employees and 76 seats based on

City requirements.

Mr. Mitchell said the existing structure outside of the roof and deck will remain the same

and no changes will be made.

Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes —10/04/2022 — Page 5



William Simpson moved to approve the proposed exterior modifications to the Cozy Grape
located at 14340 Liberty Street in the Historic Preservation District. Daniel Gazda

seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

5. Consideration and possible action on proposed canopy signage for the Simmons Bank
ATM located at 14340 Liberty Street in the Historic Preservation District.

Mr. McCorquodale said when this application was submitted last month the sign for the
atm had already been installed. Mr. McCorquodale said in his opinion if there was a
benefit to installing it first was it was entirely out of scale. Mr. McCorquodale said it is
about 30 inches tall and an atm should not be the most visually dominant thing on the street.
Mr. McCorquodale said a corporate brand is something that is especially important to

businesses and needs to be consistent but the idea of the scale of it is too large.

William Simpson said the sign is basically a visibility for foot traffic as there is no building
there and they are not trying to bring people in from SH 105. Jeffrey Waddell agreed and
said there is no reason for it to be seen from FM 149 or SH 105. Jeffrey Waddell said
proportion wise it is too large and right up against Cozy Grape which is taking away the

look from the Cozy Grape.

William Simpson said they cannot tell the bank not to use their corporate design, but they
can dictate the size and proportion of the sign. William Simpson said the sign needs to be

decreased 12 inches in height which would be around the size of the steel frame.

Britnee Ghutzman moved to deny the proposed canopy signage for the Simmons Bank
ATM located at 14340 Liberty Street in the Historic Preservation District. Daniel Gazda

seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

COMMISSION INQUIRY:

Jeffrey Waddell asked Mr. McCorquodale to give an update on the hiring process for the new City

Administrator. Mr. McCorquodale said they are working with SGR an executive search firm that

Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes —10/04/2022 — Page 6



specializes in local and county governments for these types of positions. Mr. McCorquodale said
they advertised for a month and received 38 applicants. Mr. McCorquodale said those applicants
were then screened by SGR and City Council in turn reviewed all those applicants at last night’s
meeting and selected 11 applicants to be semi-finalists. Mr. McCorquodale said in three weeks
they will look at written and video questions that are submitted by the semi-finalists and from there
they will select up to six finalists to interview. Mr. McCorquodale said the six finalists will then
be interviewed in the second week of November and if one is selected then the likeliness for that
person to begin employment would be the first of the year which would be the best guess without
taking into consideration if that person is currently working somewhere and needs to give notice,

or if that person needs to relocate.

Jeffrey Waddell asked Mr. McCorquodale to give an update on the Redbird Development off of
Old Plantersville Road. Jeffrey Waddell said the main reason he brings this up is because Old
Plantersville Road is disintegrating. Jeffrey Waddell asked if after the feasibility study the Redbird
project does happen, would the developer help with the improvement of that road. Mr.
McCorquodale said when they annexed that property, they did not annex the road and that is still
a county road. Mr. McCorquodale said when they met with the County and developer a year ago
at the same time, there is a bit of a balancing act that when bringing in concrete trucks and dump
trucks you do not want that happening on a brand-new road and then having to tear up the road
again. Mr. McCorquodale said the County understands that for us to accept the road they accept
the road in good condition. Mr. McCorquodale said there will be some items for the developer and
County to work out and they will need to have the driveways approved by the County for what is

inside the County’s jurisdiction.

Mr. Roznovsky said part of their development is going to be dedicated to an additional right-of-
way to widen Old Plantersville Road and add more space and utilities. Mr. Roznovsky said
potentially in phase one the County will put in turn lanes, phase two the County will resurface or
repair the road and by phase three they will connect it through to Spring Branch. Mr. Roznovsky

said as of right now the only thing they have reviewed is the drainage study.

Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes —10/04/2022 — Page 7



Jeffrey Waddell asked if Public Works could do something temporarily to improve the road
condition by removing some of the large debris from the road. Mr. McCorquodale said he would
have them contact Precinct 1 and see if they can help patch some of the holes that would last until

the improvements are made.

Britnee Ghutzman asked how code enforcement was going. Mr. McCorquodale said it is going
well. Mr. McCorquodale said there is less of a hammer approach with code enforcement so there
is a lot of latitude and working with individual businesses and property owners. Britnee Ghutzman
asked if it was complaint driven. Mr. McCorquodale said a lot of it is. Mr. McCorquodale said in
the second City Council meeting of the month in with the Police Department the Code
Enforcement Officer breaks down how many internal and residential initiations there are, and a
good amount come from him. Mr. McCorquodale said one of the things the Code Enforcement
Officer was focused on was signs. Mr. McCorquodale said they want to be a partner with
businesses and not necessarily someone who is working against them. Mr. McCorquodale said the
Code Enforcement Officer is also managing the special event permit applications as she is very
thorough in what she does. Jeffrey Waddell said it also helps her get to know the community more

too.
ADJOURNMENT

Britnee Ghutzman moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:11 p.m. William Simpson seconded

the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (4-0)
Prepared by: Date Approved:

Diana Cooley, Deputy City Secretary
Chairman Jeffrey Waddell

Attest:

Nici Browe, City Secretary

Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes —10/04/2022 — Page 8



